
 

HCR Multifamily Finance 9% RFP – Summer 2020 

Questions and Answers #1 

 

Architecture and Engineering: 

Q1: Does the “occupied rehabilitation package” refer to Attachment G-1, as well as G-2 to G-
8, of the application? Or is it simply a portion of those sections?  

A: Per the Summer 2020 RFP, the requirement for occupied rehabilitation packages is as 
follows: 

2. Special Instructions for Applicants 

• Rehabilitation of Occupied Buildings: Applicants proposing rehabilitation of occupied buildings 
must submit an occupied rehabilitation package to HCR’s Design, Construction and Engineering 
Unit (Design Unit) to discuss the building’s existing condition and proposed renovations prior to 
submission of the application. Applicants proposing the rehabilitation of occupied buildings 
must submit an occupied rehabilitation package consisting of a draft physical needs assessment 
form accompanied by photographs showing typical and special areas of concern by 3:00 PM on 
July 23, 2020. 

Q2: For the Design related TA submissions, should all sections of Attachment D1 be 
completed, or just the site plan, building plans and elevations as stated in the parentheses? 

A: Site plans, building plans and building elevations are the only D-1 Preliminary Plans 
submission requirement for TA; however, if there are any concern or questions that the 
applicant may have on requirements that may not be well represented in these required 
drawings, then additional supporting documentation shall be submitted. For example, if the 
applicant is requesting a waiver from the square footage requirement for certain dwelling units, 
then the submission should include area calculation diagrams (item D of Attachment D-1) and 
the area calculation tables in Exhibit D-2.  
 
Q3: In terms of basements and area calculations, if properties have unfinished basements 
with laundry and mechanical, does this area count towards “Residential Dwelling Unit 
Space”? If not, is this space accounted for in any area calculation? Also, in a duplex with a 
shared, unfinished basement, does this area count as Dwelling Unit Space, Common Space, or 
not counted at all?  
 
A: For new construction projects with a basement, the entire basement area shall be included 
in the Residential Common Area. Basement spaces may be excluded in existing buildings where 
the spaces are not being renovated and are only occupied by incidental uses that are off-limits 
to the residents, such as mechanical or trash areas.  Shared areas in the basement that are 
accessible and utilized by the tenants, such as laundry areas, should be considered Residential 



 

Common Area (non-dwelling unit) space. These basements count towards the 25% maximum 
Shared Residential Common Area. See HCR reference document Appendix C – Area Calculations 
- 2020 for more information.  
 
Q4: Can you provide more information on the requirements to use the IPNA format (as 
opposed to the Fannie Mae form)? 
 
A: The IPNA is an Integrated Physical Needs Assessment developed in coordination with 
NYSERDA. The assessment includes a traditional physical needs assessment, in addition to an 
energy audit that facilitates identification of deficiencies in a project’s energy systems. An 
additional benefit of the tool is that it may assist in certification through NYSERDA MPP 
program. The IPNA will typically need to be performed by two different professionals, a Needs 
Assessor and an Energy Assessor. The IPNA requirements include the following: 

1. A Needs Assessment (broadly following ASTM E2018-15 Standard Guide for Property 
Condition Assessments: Baseline Property Condition Assessment Process) 

2. An Energy Assessment (broadly following the ANSI/ASHRAE/ACCA Standard 211, 
Standard for Commercial Building Energy Audits (2018 or most recent version, if 
published) Level II and the IPNA Guidelines) 

3. A Healthy Home Assessment (per health inspection guidance listed in the IPNA) 
 

The latest version of this tool will be available on 7/30/2020. Requests for the IPNA documents 
can be sent to 9%RFP@nyshcr.org.  

Q5: The Fannie Mae PNA states “The PCA Consultant, its personnel and any subcontractors 
hired by the PCA Consultant must be independent third-parties, unrelated to, and not have 
any financial or economic interest in, the Property, the Property Owner, or any affiliated 
entity of the Property Owner.  The PCA Consultant must disclose in the PCA Report if the PCA 
Consultant is an employee or affiliate of the Lender.” Does this mean our architect and/or 
general contractor will not be able to complete or certify the PNA? 
 
A: A contract for work or services performed on a property does not equate to a financial or 
economic interest in that property. If a contract for work with the property owner is the only 
financial tie that the architect or GC has with the property or property owner, then they would 
not fall under this requirement.  

 

RFP: 

Q1: Is there a complete term sheet for the Middle Income Housing Program (MIHP)? It was 
not included in the RFP itself or in the attachments.  
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A: There is no separate term sheet for MIHP. MIHP may only be used in combination with HTF, 
SHOP or 9% LIHTC as described in the pertinent term sheets. Please refer to the RFP and term 
sheets for more information.  

Q2: If a nonprofit sponsor last received an award from HCR under the May 2017 RFP, would 
that timing permit the nonprofit to apply for an LIHTC (and SLIHC) application fee deferral 
under the current RFP?  

A: The RFP states: 

“Not-for-profit applicants (or their wholly-owned subsidiaries) which have not received HCR 
capital funding since 2017 and which will be the sole general partner (or co-general partner 
with another not-for-profit) of the limited partnership/project owner or the sole managing 
member (or co-managing member with another not-for-profit) of the limited liability 
company/project owner may request a deferral of the application fee until the time of initial 
allocation (i.e. carryover allocation).” 
 
Therefore, prospective not-for-profit applicants which received funding under the 9% RFP in 
May 2017 would be eligible for the LIHTC (and SLIHC) application fee deferral.  
 

Q3: Will a term sheet for the ANYC funds be made available as part of the Summer 2020 RFP? 

A: There will not be a term sheet for ANYC funds. These funds will be allocated to eligible 
projects at HCR’s discretion. 

 

Application: 

Q1: Due to COVID-19 protective measures, are electronic signatures acceptable for this 
application? 

A: Any of the Application Exhibits/Attachments requiring signatures may be printed out, signed 
and uploaded as a pdf.  

Q2: Does the LIHTC Application Fee Payment need to be made by a bank check or is a regular 
check sufficient? 

A: The credit fee payment can be paid through either a bank check or a regular check. 

Q3: Exhibit I-1 Background Search Consent and Authorization to Release Information indicates 
this form needs to be completed for each development team member. Last year’s application 
allowed for duplication by copying and pasting for multiple team members. Is there a method 
for duplicating information for multiple team members in the 2020 application?  



 

A: For the Summer 2020 application, the Background Consent (2019 Tab A-5) was combined 
with the Authorization to Release Information (2019 Tab A-6) in the revised Exhibit I-1. Some of 
the previous years’ functionality was not able to be preserved due to the 2020 revisions.  

Underwriting: 

Q1: One of the 9% LIHTC Income Averaging Set-Aside requirements is that “c) the designated 
imputed income limitations must be in 10% increments ranging from 20% to 80% AMI.” Are 
projects required to have units in every income bracket?  

A:  For 9% LIHTC applications proposing the Average Income Set-Aside, the unit AMI’s must be 
in 10% increments ranging from 20% to 80% AMI.  However, applicants do not need to include 
units at each 10% increment for the income brackets from 20% to 80% AMI. 

 

Site Control: 

Q1: Is a clear, non-conditional assignment right to step in the shoes of a contract buyer an 
acceptable form of site control?  

A: If an applicant has a legal and binding assignment of a contract to purchase the property, 
which purchase contract is valid under the site control guidelines of the CPM, and assuming the 
assignment is not conditioned, does not terminate on a date that conflicts with application 
requirements, that raises no self-dealing or conflict of interest issues, then presumably yes.  A 
straight assignment of a purchase contract would be acceptable in a site control 
review.  Assignments are very rarely not valid and contracts of sale and are generally freely 
assignable. Having stated that, certainly the Agency would need to reserve its right to review all 
documentation in connection with a funding application to make any final decisions regarding 
site control. 

 

Environmental: 

Q1: The Phase I ESA for our project references older reports. Those reports resolve prior 
concerns at the project site. Should those older reports be submitted with the application? If 
they are older than one year should they be updated? 

A: The older reports should be submitted with the application. If they resolve the issue and are 
older than one year, they most likely do not need to be updated. Only the Phase I ESA needs to 
be dated within one year of the application for purposes of threshold review. If the older 
reports do not resolve the issue, the application must include either follow-up studies, plans, 
and budgets and/or a narrative explanation along with budgets for resolving the concern. 

 
 


